
1 
 

Minutes of the 
Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission’s 

Consumer Advisory Council 
Meeting of January 24, 2012 

P.O. Box 3265                                                                        www.puc.state.pa.us 
Harrisburg, PA 17105-3265 

Call to Order and Introductions 
 
Vice Chairman Robert Christianson called the meeting to order at 10 a.m. in the 
Executive Chambers of the Public Utility Commission.   
 
George Silvestri commented on the piping failure of the steam piping at the 
Springfield station led to the development of the ASME (American Society of 
Mechanical Engineers) code on Pressure Vessels and Piping.  This ASME code and 
the API (American Petroleum Institute) Standards for piping should be used in the 
development of Pennsylvania standards for pipelines.  We should not reinvent the 
wheel and ignore these resources.  
 
Robert Christianson said he sent some corrections prior to the meeting.  The Council 
approved the amended November 22, 2011, minutes.  
 

Attendance 
 

The following members of the Council were present: 
 

Tim Hennessey, Chairman 
Robert Christianson, Vice Chairman   
Pedro Anes  
Michael Bannon 
Lillian Carpenter (telephone) 
Cindy Datig (telephone) 
 

Harry Geller 
Rick Hicks (telephone) 
Tom LeCrone (telephone) 
George Silvestri 
Lee Tolbert (telephone)  
Joe Toner (telephone) 

The following members of the Council were unable to be present: 
  

John Detman Tina Serafini  
 

Public Utility Commission Staff present: 
 

April Ballou, Chairman Powelson’s Office 
Pat McDonnell, Commissioner Witmer’s Office 

Tom Charles, Office of Communications 
Lori Shumberger, Office of Communications 

Heidi Wushinske, Law Bureau 
Dan Mumford, Bureau of Consumer Services 

 
Guests Present: 

 
Heather Yoder, Office of Consumer Advocate 



2 
 

Karen Markey, Energy Association of PA 
Bernadette Foisy, PECO 
Scott Neumann, PECO 

Richard Schlesinger, PECO 
Richard Webster, PECO 

Amy Whitney, PECO 
Sandra Levine, with George Silvestri 

Taylor Gatta, with Tim Hennessey 
 

  PECO’s Tree Trimming, Outage Restoration, Storm Response and 
PECO’s Reference Guide for Public Officials 
 
Bob Christianson said PECO was here to discuss tree trimming, outage restoration 
and storm response.   
 
Dick Webster thanked the Council for the invitation and introduced Scott Neumann, 
who is a senior rates engineer.  He has first-hand experience with outages since he 
was in the field for years. 
 
Scott Neumann handed out a copy of the presentation to everyone. 
 
On Page 3, the 2011 review shows it was a stormy year for Pennsylvania.  There 
were two major storms.  Most customers had interruptions in their service.  February 
was the worse month.  The ice storm affected 9.7 percent of PECO’s customers with 
snow depth averaging 6 inches and ice across the PECO territory.  The summer had 
six heat waves and 32 days of 90 plus degree heat from May through August 
months. 
 
On August 27, 2011, Hurricane Irene hit.  It ranks as the third worst storm in 
customer outages.  Almost one-third of PECO’s customers were without service. 
PECO replaced 90 miles of wire and cable, more than 300 poles and more than 275 
transformers.  Ninety-nine percent of customers were restored within 72 hours of 
their outage.  The table of progress lists the number of customers restored.  This 
report is given to the PUC for each incident.  
 
The October snow storm ranked as the worst October storm in PECO’s history.  The 
trees still had leaves on them and the wet snow and strong winds damaged trees and 
electrical equipment.  More than 275,000 PECO customers were without service.  
PECO restored 90 percent of customers within 37 hours.  
 
On Page 6, lists PECO’s storm preparations.  PECO will start pre-planning and 
securing additional personnel for assistance.  PECO will conduct outreach to elected 
officials, local governments, media and consumers to help prepare them for possible 
outages. 
 
On Page 7, shows PECO’s game plan on our restoration strategy.  The plan is to 
restore a maximum amount of customers in the shortest time.  The next step is to 
restore service to critical care customer such as hospital and nursing homes. 



3 
 

Vegetation management program is tasked with trimming and removing vegetation in 
and around 13,000 miles of distribution and 1,000 miles of transmission facilities.  
PECO does preventive trims to all circuits every five years. 
 
If PECO see areas that have outages due to vegetation, additional trimming will be 
done in those areas. 
 
On Page 10, PECO’s keys to success are listed.  They are reliability enhancement 
and preventative maintenance programs.   
 
With the reliability enhancement program, PECO reviews the 5 percent of the worst 
circuits each year.  These circuits will be worked on to minimum the outages.  The 
City of Philadelphia has all underground lines.  PECO must constantly review these 
systems for updates and improvements. 
 
The preventative maintenance program covers vegetation programs, circuit patrols, 
manhole inspections, center city network inspections and recloser inspections.   
 
Tim Hennessey thanked Bob Christianson for chairing the meeting while he was out.   
 
Tim Hennessey remarked to the Council that at this time of economic recession, 
there is resentment towards utility companies in regard to billing, general 
maintenance and restoration times following major storms.  Please remember that 
during these times of outages, the public is inconvenienced by the lack of amenities 
we are used to and enjoy on a daily basis.   When issues arise, we should be 
proactive in seeking the utility’s help.  In doing so, we can solve the issue together in 
a quick and efficient manner; thereby strengthening not weakening, our association. 
 
Lee Tolbert thanked PECO for the presentation, but said he has been having a hard 
time communicating with PECO.  Has talked with someone in the area of distribution 
and has not received the information as requested.  Dick Webster said he would 
follow up with Lee Tolbert and have someone get back to them. 
 
Joe Toner asked what the tree-trimming budget is over the last five years.  Dick 
Webster said the budget runs about $20 million every year, plus or minus a few 
million.  Last year’s budget was up.  PECO rotates around the county to different 
areas each year. 
 
Joe Toner asked about Chester County’s tree trimming.  There have been 11 or 12 
articles in the local news about poor service or restoration.  All issues always go back 
to trees not being cut.  People use to come to County meetings and complain about 
how their trees were being cut.  This hasn’t happened in a number of years.  This is a 
major problem in Chester County.  One article talked about if a tree hits the line, a 
device on the circuit will restore power.  Scott Neumann said the item is a restorer or 
a smart switch.  If a tree comes down and takes out electric, the smart switch will 
open and close areas to isolate the smallest area to be out of service.  PECO has 
heavily installed these over the past 20 years to help reduce the number of 
customers’ outages. 



4 
 

Tim Hennessey asked if the outages were in one area of Chester County or all over?  
Joe Toner said it is county wide.  There needs to be more tree cutting.  Dick Webster 
said he knew Chester County has been hard hit.  PECO hasn’t ramped back their 
tree cutting and said he would call Joe Toner to have someone meet with him. 
 
Bob Christianson said PPL had some phone problems during the outages, did PECO 
have similar issues?  Dick Webster said there were some problems but PPL’s issues 
were different than ours.  PECO has an outsource company to answer phones, but, 
at this time, we no longer have the phone service.  PECO has done more pre-storm 
communications.   
 
Bob Christianson asks which would be better cost wise between tree trimming or 
restoration of lost service.  Dick Webster said tree trimming would cost less, but trees 
do grow back.   
 
Tom LeCrone said, in Lancaster County, they brought in an arborist to help maintain 
the trees.  It is important to work with the utilities.  Utilities should have a vegetation 
plan for each area.  Some trees should never be replanted it some spots.  What is 
PECO doing about these issues?  Scott Neumann said that is part of the overall tree-
trimming plans.  They will remove trees that are in inappropriate places or are dead 
or dying.   
 
If homeowners have trees that could take lines down, who is responsible to cut them 
down?  Scott Neumann said they will work with the homeowners, but, if the tree isn’t 
over the lines, it is the homeowner’s responsibility.   
 
Lillian Carpenter brought up the age and training of linesmen.  There are lines 
coming down for no reason other than improper installation.  Dick Webster said 
PECO knows this is a problem and have a linesman school to train new people.  
There are a lot of older linesmen still working.  The PUC supports PECO’s approach 
to this training. 
 
George Silvestri said the companies should try a mentor program.  Bring in the older 
skilled linesmen and teach the new recruits.   
 
 
Cold Weather Report and Terminations and Reconnection Numbers 
 
Dan Mumford from the PUC’s Bureau of Consumer Services was asked to give an 
update on the Cold Weather Report and terminations and reconnections.   In the 
packet are handouts for the November and December terminations and reconnection 
numbers:  a copy of the Council’s filed comments on the proposed rulemaking order 
on marketing and sales practices; and a copy of the final order on the interim 
guidelines on marketing and sales practices for electric generation suppliers and 
natural gas suppliers.   
 
The December termination and reconnection numbers give us a final number for 
2011.  The numbers look similar to 2010.  Electric numbers went up, but natural gas 



5 
 

and water numbers went down.  The overall termination number is up 4 percent for 
2011.   
 
Given the economic issues, this wasn’t as bad as it could have been. 
 
At this time, the utilities must follow the winter terminations rules.  They cannot 
terminate anyone under the 250 percent poverty level or below.  So there isn’t much 
happening in the December month.  There is only a slight increase from the 
December 2010 numbers. 
 
Please remember the winter termination rules are in effect until the end of March.  
Starting in April, companies can start terminating again. 
 
The PUC cannot tell how many customers are without service.  So the PUC requires 
the electric and natural gas distribution companies under the PUC’s jurisdiction to 
survey residential properties where service has been terminated and has not been 
reconnected during the course of the calendar year. The survey assesses the 
number of households without heat-related service entering the winter months. 
 
Every December, the PUC releases those cold weather survey results. As part of the 
survey, the utility must make four attempts to contact consumers who are known to 
be without heat-related utility service.  
 
Homes using potentially unsafe heating sources also are counted separately 
because the home is not relying on a central-heating system.  
 
The PUC did a press release back in December with the current numbers of 
households without service.  There are more than 20,000 households without service 
this year.  There is about 400 to 500 households more than 2010.  There will be an 
update in February.   
 
Dan Mumford said the PUC received 12 comments for the guidelines on marketing 
and sales practices for electric generation suppliers and natural gas suppliers.  The 
Council was one of the parties that submitted comments.  At this time, the staff is 
reviewing all the comments.  The timeframe is sometime this year for the order.  
Once the PUC has finalized the Order, we must still get approval from the Attorney 
General’s Office and the legislation.  Until the final order is approved, the interim 
guidelines are still in place.  There is a copy of the interim guidelines in your packets. 
 
Michael Bannon said he received a phone call from a woman about her husband with 
dementia and he signed with a supplier that came to the door.  She called their 
electric company and had the contract canceled.  Does the PUC hear about this 
problem?  Dan Mumford said yes, we do get phone calls about these types of 
problems.  Most suppliers have scaled back due to the weather.   
 
Bob Christianson said the cost to do door-to-door sales is expensive.  Dan Mumford 
said yes, but most suppliers said other forms of advertising don’t work well.  Most 
people screen their calls.  Direct mailings have not received a big response. 



6 
 

Bob Christianson asked how LIHEAP is doing.  Dan Mumford said he understands 
the funding this year isn’t as much.  Most utilities are concerned that DPW has not 
gotten the amount as in past years. 
 
Harry Geller said funding has been reduced this year.  This past week, Pennsylvania 
has received additional funding, but is still below last year’s level. DPW reduced the 
level to 150 percent poverty compared to last year’s 160 percent. 
 
There is a LIHEAP meeting on February 8. DPW has not stated if they will run out of 
money prior to the closing date of March 15.  The cash grants have been slower this 
year.    
 
Bob Christianson said he understood that natural gas and oil prices were tracking 
side by side.  The gas prices have been going down, but the oil prices are going up.  
Dan Mumford said yes, they haven’t been tracking side by side for about five years.  
Natural gas prices have dropped due to storage and warm weather. 
 
Dan Mumford said there are still a lot of customers that use heating oil.  For a 
customer to convert to natural gas, they must have access to the natural gas mains 
and change their furnace.   
 
There is some concern about the price going to low that it will kill production.  The 
cost of oil has not seen any relief due to the oversea events drive the cost of oil.  This 
also will add extra stress to LIHEAP funding.  There are a number of LIHEAP 
applications for oil heating bills.  A LIHEAP payment will not cover the total cost of the 
bill.  There isn’t a CAP program for oil customers either. 
 
George Silvestri said he worked in the energy industry for 40 years.  Pennsylvania 
has a golden opportunity with all the natural gas.  There is a way to create liquid fuel 
from natural gas.  The Germans made liquid fuel by using water and coal.  This 
procedure should be looked into.  Pennsylvania has two major fuel sources with 
natural gas and coal. 
 
Dan Mumford said natural gas has impacted the electric side.  More plants are using 
natural gas now to make electric.  The wholesale cost for electric has gone down.  
This helps consumers because their bills will be lower. 
 
Tom Charles said the Commission is planning an en banc hearing this spring on 
alternative fueled vehiclies.  After the hearing, if the Council would like, we can have 
someone give a presentation about the hearing and findings.   
 
Dan Mumford said some companies are converting buses to use natural gas for fuel.   
 
Harry Geller said the termination numbers go down in December due to the winter 
termination procedures.  Has the Commission done studies on why this happens.  Do 
the utilities voluntarily reduce terminations?  Do customers catch up on their bills?  
Dan Mumford said the Commission has informal discussions with the utilities.  A lot of 
the companies just don’t terminate in the winter months.  They have their own 



7 
 

reasons.  PPL’s policy is to try to get everyone back on the system before the winter 
months. 
 
Dan Mumford said the cold weather survey is on the PUC’s website, if anyone would 
like to see the report. 
 
Bob Christianson asked about the weekly electric switching and the monthly natural 
gas switching charts.  Tom Charles said these numbers come from the utility 
companies and are updated weekly or monthly.  Both charts are posted on the 
website.  The electric chart is on the PA PowerSwitch page and the natural gas chart 
is on the natural gas page, under natural gas shopping. 
 
Bob Christianson asked how the PUC’s reorganization was going.  Tom Charles said 
it is almost complete.  At a future meeting, someone can give an update.  There are 
two new bureaus called the Bureau of Technical Utility Services (TUS) and the 
Bureau of Investigation and Enforcement (I&E).  Some of the old bureaus have been 
moved into these new bureaus and other bureaus have some divisions moved 
around.  Bob Christianson said he would like an update on this. 
 
 
Marketing Guidelines and Door-to-Door Subcommittee Report 
 
Harry Geller thanked the Council for their help.  The comments were submitted to the 
PUC.  A copy of the filing is in the packets. 
 
Sandra Levine mentioned the gentleman with dementia that changed his supplier.  
PECO terminated the agreement.  It seemed easy to be canceled.  Dick Webster 
said part of the process in changing suppliers is that the customer will receive a letter 
and they have 10 days to contact PECO to cancel the switch.  The tradeoff is it takes 
longer to switch over.  There have been many customers that have taken advantage 
of this policy.  Michael Bannon said the utility company has the ability to cancel the 
contracts?  Dick Webster said no, the customer does. 
 
 
Landlord/Tenant Update 
 
Heidi Wushinske thanked Harry Geller for clarifying his request.  Harry asked who 
enforces Section 1313 of the Public Utility Code. The PUC enforces Section 1313 in 
cases where it has jurisdiction and a clear violation occurs.  For example, if the rate 
charged by a utility company is 10 cents and a person is charged 15 cents, the PUC 
would handle the case.  The way landlords are getting away with is by adding a 
surcharge to tenants’ bills.  If the tenant thinks there’s a problem with the surcharge, 
they would have to go to the Attorney General’s Office or a district justice office 
because the PUC doesn’t have jurisdiction in those cases. 
 
The PUC hasn’t seen any issues dealing with Section 1313 recently, but we have 
seen some issues dealing with surcharges and we don’t control them. 
 



8 
 

The case law dispute is only for rates. 
 
Harry Geller said the PUC has taken a narrow interpretation on rates.  The PUC 
doesn’t view add-ons coming under this law.  Is there a formal opinion on this?  Heidi 
Wushinske said not that she could find one.  Harry Geller asked about foreign load.  
Heidi Wushinske said once the PUC finds there is no misconduct, the PUC’s 
authority ends. 
 
Harry Geller said what they see in addition to the surcharge is landlords also use a 
resale formula for the utility.   It can be by space of the unit, size of the unit, or 
number of tenants.  It is not a direct charge because each unit isn’t metered.  Who is 
responsible for these issues?  Heidi Wushinske said she didn’t know, but this 
wouldn’t fall under the Commission’s jurisdiction.  This is likely a situation that would 
be handled by the Attorney General, district justice, or a housing court. 
 
Michael Bannon said thank you for the update but still thinks the jurisdiction should 
be with the PUC on all issues.  It doesn’t help tenants to be told to call the district 
court on their problems.  Heidi Wushinske said in Philadelphia there is a housing 
court for these issues.    
 
Harry Geller said if there is a straight meter, and tenants were charged higher than 
actual use, the Commission would be involved.  If it’s a surcharge issue, tenants 
would need to go to the Attorney General’s Office or a district judge.  Michael Bannon 
said he would like to address this with someone.  This is a money maker for the 
landlords.  It is unregulated.  Heidi Wushinske said it would depend on the issue. 
 
Harry Geller asked Rick Hicks if he could comment on this issue.  The issue is on 
Sections 1313 and 3313, under Title 66, reselling sections.  What the PUC can do 
and what the Attorney’s General’s Office can do.  Rick Hicks said the Bureau of 
Consumer Protection has the ability to handle goods of services.  There are laws for 
residential customers.  Bureau of Consumer Protection can handle enforcement 
actions.  Consumers could go to a private law firm for unfair trade practice.  It is hard 
to get the AG’s office to handle legal actions, but they are the ones enforcing this law.   
 
Michael Bannon thanked Rick Hicks for his answer.  Is there anything that addresses 
the reselling of electric?  What is an OK markup for the electric?  Can a landlord buy 
electric and mark up the cost by 15 percent?  Rick Hicks said no.  Heidi Wushinske 
said zero is only OK. 
 
Harry Geller gave a follow-up on this issue.  On Section 1313, if a charge is above 
the utility company’s amount, what will the Commission do or enforce?  Heidi 
Wushinske said she has not seen this issue.  A consumer could file a complaint with 
BCS.  The Attorney General’s Office tries to mediate these cases.   
 
Harry Geller said the difficulty that he has with these issues are:  The Commission 
said they don’t have authority over landlords.  Rick Hicks said the reality is the 
Commission isn’t a policy enforcer for landlords.  They have authority over utilities.   
 



9 
 

Bob Christianson said landlords that abuse the law should be handled by the district 
judge.  Heidi Wushinske said that’s correct, but she would continue to look into this 
issue. 
 
Lee Tolbert asked if the Council should send a request to the Commissioners on this 
issue.  There is a void that needs to be closed.  Also, should we send one to the 
legislators?  Tom Charles said it may be best to see what else Heidi Wushinske can 
find. 
 
 
Retail Markets Investigation 
 
Tom Charles said the third and final phase of the Retail Markets Investigations (RMI) 
is now under way.  In Phase 3, Communications’ primary focus will be the 
development of a comprehensive statewide consumer-education plan.  The reply 
comments are due on February 1. 
 
The final RMI en banc hearing will be on Wednesday, March 21, in Hearing Room 1.   
 
In the interim, our next step is the naming of a small working group that will begin 
writing the plan and presenting it for discussion to the entire group over the course of 
four technical conference call to be held between February 1 and March 15.  Harry 
Geller is a regular on these calls. 
 
For consumer education, a postcard is to be sent to all residents and small 
businesses to help drive everyone to the PA PowerSwitch (PAPS) website.  The 
postcard was Commission endorsed.   
 
Dan Mumford said the RMI group is also addressing universal service issues.  CAP 
customers should have the ability to shop.  PECO has been helping on this issue.   
 
Michael Bannon said the PAPS website is great.  The Commission seems to be 
focusing on educating consumers.  Dan Mumford said there is still a lot to do. 
 
 
Future Agenda Items 
 
Tom Charles said for February’s meeting will be a conference call lead by the 
Council, the next regular meeting will be on Tuesday, March 27, 2012.  For the 
conference call, please pick one topic for discussion.  Please let Tom Charles or Lori 
Shumberger know the topic.   
 
Some issues to think about, Act 127, alternative fuel and the Retail Markets 
Investigation (RMI) en banc hearing in March.  Harry Geller said the Council hasn’t 
weighed in on RMI; the Council may want to submit comments.   
  
Harry Geller suggested having a subcommittee on line if the Council would like to 
comment on RMI issue on default service.  The subcommittee will be Harry Geller, 



10 
 

Michael Bannon, Rick Hicks, Pedro Anes and Bob Christianson.  Tom Charles said 
that could be the February conference call discussion, if so, please let us know.   
 
Have Heidi Wushinske report on the Section 1313 and 3313 issue.   
 
Future Meeting Topics Include: 
 
 Act 127 Update 
 Aging Workforce and Line Crew Update 
 Director of the Bureau of Consumer Services Visit  
 Legislative Update 
 LIHEAP Update 
 Marcellus Shale Update – Chairman Powelson’s Visit 
 Marketing Guidelines Update 
 Retail Markets Investigation Update 
 Section 1313 Update 
 
The next meeting for the CAC will be held at 10 a.m. on March 27, 2012, in the 
Executive Chambers of the Commonwealth Keystone Building. 

 
### 


